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LEINER PAK GELATINE LIMITED.

. DON T ONLY ASK FOR GELATINE!
INSIST ON “HALAL”

(SELATIN® ARG (T8 FROOUCTE

NOTICE OF 35™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 35" Annual General Meeting of LEINER PAK GELATINE ETD.,
will be held on Friday, the 26" October, 2018 at 10.00 A.M. at the Registered office of the
Company, 17/G, Gulberg-2, Lahore-54660 to transact the following business:-

1. Recitation from the I—IIuIy Quran.

2. To confirm the minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on Tuesday, 31% October.
2017.

3. To reccive and adopt the Annual Accounts of the Company for the Year ended 30™ June,
eer i Dirers and Audirs Rer eren.

4. To appoint the Auditors of the Company for the year ending 30" June. 2019 and to fix
their remuneration.

Ordinary Business
5. To transact or discuss any other business with the permission of the Chair.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD,

< /em

(IBRAR AHMED KHWAJA),
LAHORE: COMPANY SECRETARY.
DATED: 04" October, 2018.
NOTES:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 20 October. 2018 to
26" October, 2018 (both days inclusive). Shares may be lodged for transfer with our
Registrar M/s CORPLINK (PVT) LTD., Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, Model Town.
Lahore. Phone Nos: 042-35839182, 305887262, 35916719 Fax No: 042-35869037.

2. 'The Shareholders are advised to notify the Registrar of any change in their address.

3. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeti ng may appoint another member as
proxy to attend and vote instead of him. The Proxy Form duly signed and stamped must
be received at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the
time of holding the meeting.

4. Any individual beneficial owner of the share in the Central Depository Company (CDC)
entitled to vote at this meeting with him/her to prove him/her identity together with
his/her Account number in CDC and in case of proxy, must enclose an attested copy of

his/her CNIC. Representative of Corporate Members should bring the usual documents
required for such purpose.

h

Pursuant to the directive of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP),
CNIC numbers of shareholders are mandatory required on dividend warrants.
Shareholders are therefore requested to submit a copy of their CNIC (if not already
provided) to the Shares Registrar. In case of non-receipt of the copy of a valid CNIC, the
company would be unable to comply with SRO 831(1)/2012 dated July 05, 2012 of SECP
and therefore will be constrained under SECP order dated July 13, 2015 to withhold the
dispaich of dividend warrants of such shareholders.

6. Sharcholders, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend or bonus shares or did
not collect their physical shares, are advised to contact our Share Registrar Mis Corplink
(Pvt) Limited. to collect / enquire about their unclaimed dividend or pending shares, if
any.
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Please note that in compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, after having
completed the stipulated procedure, all dividends unclaimed for a period of three years
from the date due and payable shall be deposited to the credit of the Federal Government
and in case of shares. shall be delivered to the Securitics & Exchange Commission

Pakistan.

Pursuant to Notification vide SRO.787(1)/2014 of September 08, 2014, SECP has
directed to facilitate the members of the company receiving Annual Financial Statements
and Notices through electronic mail system (e-mail). We are pleased to offer this facility
to our members who desire to receive Annual Financial Statements and Notices of the
Company through e-mail in future. In this respect members are hereby requested 1o
convey their consent via e-mail on a standard request form which is available at the
Company website i.e. www.leinerpakgelatine.com.

_ Members can also avail video conference facility, in this regard, please fill the following
and submit to registered address of the Company 10 days before holding of the Annual
General Meeting. If the Company received consent from members holding in aggregate
10% or more shareholding residing at a geographical location, to participate in the
meeting through video conference at least 10 days prior date of the meeting, the Company
will arrange video conference facility in the city subject to availability of such facility in
that city.

“I/We, . of , being a membes
of Leiner Pak Gelatine limited, holder of ordinary Share(s) as p@
Registered Folio No. hereby opt for video conference facility
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VISION STATEMENT

To continue to lead the domestic industry in Gelatine manufacturing with
technology and quality of the product along with persistent recognition in
international market.

MISSION

The mission of the management of the Company is to focus on the vision and its
accomplishment by:-

» Adoption of advanced technologies in Gelatine manufacturing.

» Investment in human resources to create and strengthen professional
environment.

» Exploring new international markets with the satisfaction of existing
customers.

» Continuous improvement of quality system, Environmental management
system from 1SO-9001:2000, ISO 14000 (already obtained) to other
achievements of quality management.

»  Fetching and delivering healthy returns to all stakeholders.

» Contribution towards economic and social up lift of employees and

community in general.
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CORPORATE STRATEGY
OBJECTIVES

Our corporate strategy is very much in line with vision and mission statement. Strat
objectives are covering the following areas.

e Sustainable growth.

« Promotion for efficient use of energy.

e [nnovation in product line.

e Customer satisfaction.

¢ Adherence to the code of conduct.

« Safeguard the share holders interest.

« Continuous improvement of human capital.

STRATEGIC PLANNING

It is planned to innovate the product line with scheduled R&D activities. Ene
Conservation through calibration, expert advises and induction of efficient machinery a
replacing the old production line which shall lead to sustainable growth. Well equip
quality assurance department is maintained to achieve consistency in quality of
products. Optimal utilization of Company resources to achieve the economy lev
Investment in human capital by participating in workshops, conferences, and differes
technical courses offered by reputed institutions. Formulation of Code of Conduct for bett
governance and to bring corporate culture in Company.
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the Company’s 35" Annual
Report.

Financial year 2017-18 remained challenging for the Company despite of the highest
turnover in the history of the Company (Rs. 752.297 million). Prices of the raw material
(crushed bone), imported chemicals and energy cost kept on increasing throughout the
financial year. Main reason behind the escalation of crushed bone price is the export of
animal bone from Pakistan to China, Japan and other neighboring countries.
Devaluation of Pakistani rupee is also one of the reason of price hike of the industrial
inputs. Higher cost of sales affected the financial results of the Company and profit

before tax is arrived at Rs. 3.742/- million only.

It is expected that increase in export sales of gelatine be witnessed in coming days as

depreciation of Pak Rupee will trigger export activities throughout the country.

The Board and its committees (Audit Committee and Human Resources and
Remuneration Committee) are meeting every quarter. The Board met seven times
during the year.

Board has defined criteria for evaluation of performance of the Board and its
committees. Evaluation of overall performance of the Board is made on yearly basis.
Directors™ performance is mainly analyzed in terms of the participation in Board
meetings, completion of Directors’ training and orientation courses, completion of the
assignments entrusted upon them, their initiatives in their domain, business acumen
and analytical skills, awareness of the major laws governing the business and
contribution in formulating the Company policies.

Performance of the Board members and members of different committees is found good
and effective as envisaged by Code of Corporate Governance and criteria laid down by
the Board. We hope that concerted efforts of the Board will again bring your Company
in profits and temporary phase of losses be over very soon.

LAHORE AHMED AL| RIAZ
Dated: October 04, 2018. Chairman
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors are pleased to present the 35" Annual Report along with Company’s financial
statements for the year ended 30™ June, 2018 together with Auditors’ Report thereon.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

Leiner Pak Gelatine Limited is involved in manufacturing “Halal” Gelatine and Di-calcium
Phasphate (by product).

OPERATIONS

In the current year Companys turnover has reached to ever highest level in the history and
registered Rs. 752.297/- million sales as compared to last year reported sales of Rs, 692.372
million (increase 8.66%). This unprecedented sales is attributed to new sales contracts of
Gelatin with major players of confectionery industry in local market. Local sales again remained
major portion of total turnover (93.58%) as in the last year (93.10%).

Despite of the fact that Company is awarded with certifications from international Halal
Authorities, export sales during the year could not witness expected growth. We have been
facing price competition due to globally decline in Gelatin prices. Devaluation in Pak Rupee is
posing some lucrative prospects in exparts and it is expected that Company's export be raised
in next financial year.

Profit margins were affected by significant increase in cost of raw material (crushed bone) on
account of its export to China, Japan and Iran. On the other hand energy cost (electricity and
gas) has tremendously increased in last year which further contributed towards higher
manufacturing cost and ultimately increase in cost of sales. Finance costs have increased as
well due to change in sales model (shift from exports to local market) as lower mark up is
charged on SBP export finance. Increase in cost of sales could not fully pass to the buyers as
our most of the sales contracts were finalized at the inception of the financial year.

‘Low margins due to heavy increase in raw material prices, imported chemicals and energy input
(both gas and electricity) affected the profitability of the Company and profit before tax is arrived
at Rs. 3.742/- million. During the year ended June 30, 2018, Company incurred a net loss of
Rs.3.956/- million and, as of that date, its accumulated loss was Rs. 7.737/- million and its
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 67.210/- million.

These events or conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and, therefore, the Company
may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

Due to the proposed use of energy conservation measures and future procurement of raw
materials direct from the source by avoiding the middle man role, the approved financial
projections, therefore, show improvements and profitability. Further, keeping in view the
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following factors, the management foresees that the Company will continue to be a goi
concern.

e There is continued demand for the products of the Company. Demand for “Ha
Gelatine exists in foreign and local markets as “Halal” Gelatine is equally consumed
Muslim and non-Muslim countries. After renewal of sales contracts with big custom
and devaluation of Pakistan Rupee, the export sales as well as local sales respecti
are expected to increase in future.

e Maijor financing arrangements with bank as at June 30, 2018 are valid for future peri
as well.

e There is continued financial support of the Company's sponsors. The sponsors’ of
Company have inducted Rupees 35.302 million (June 30, 2017: Rupees 31.294 milli
interest free loan up to June 30, 2018. They are also committed to induct further fund
the need arises, to address any liquidity issue for smooth operations.

Apart from the aforementioned factors there are also positive indicators as per these finan
statements as mentioned below:

1. Increase in production and sales over the last year;

5 The existence of new sales orders along with advance payment received t
against; and

3. Continuous existence of profits before taxation since July 1, 2014 to date.

These financial statements have, therefore, been prepared using going concern basis
accounting and, accordingly, do not include any adjustments relating to realization of its a
and the liquidation of any liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unabi
continue as a going concern.

The auditors’ report contains a paragraph regarding “Material Uncertainty Relating to G
Concern” to draw attention towards the going concern matter. In this regard managem
assessment is detailed in note 2 in the annexed financial statements.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAME WORK

Company is fully compliant with the Code of Corporate Governance and listing regulati
Board is pleased to place following statement on the record:

1. The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company, present fai
state of the affairs, the resulls of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

2. Proper books of accounts have been maintained.

3. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation
financial statements. The accounting estimates wherever required are based
reasonable and prudent judgment.

4. International Accounting Standards as applicable in Pakistan have been follo
preparation of financial statements.

5. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implem
and monitored.

9
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6. The management has explained their views in detail regarding going concern ability of
the Company in note 2 to the annexed financial statements.

7. There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance,
as detailed in listing regulations.

8. Outstanding taxes, duties and charges have been disclosed in the financial statements.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal control system of the Company is properly designed keeping in view the nature of
business and materiality of the transactions involved. Internal control system is periodically
reviewed by the audit committee and improvements in the system are made keeping in view
recommendations of internal audit department.

STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION AND ITS DISTRIBUTION
The “Statement of Value Addition and its Distribution” is annexed to the report.
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Remuneration of the Board of Directors is approved by the Board. The Company does not pay
remuneration to non-executive Directors.

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
During the year following Directors served on the Board of the Company.
Sr. No. Name of Directors Number of Meetings

Ahmed Ali Riaz

Khwaja Imtiaz Ahmed

ligz Ahmed Khwaja

lbrar Ahmed Khwaja

Umer Riaz Khwaja

Mian Zia Ud Din

Ayesha Ahmed

Khawaja Ahmed Hassan (*)

i A S e
P W N NN NN

" Khawaja Ahmed Hassan resigned on 6% February, 2018 and casual vacancy was filled by
Ayesha Ahmed in the capacity of non-executive Director. Total number of Directors remained
seven during the year.

APPROPRIATIONS

In view of the loss for the year and the accumulated loss, it has been decided to omit the
dividend for the current year.




Leiner Pak Gelatine Ltd. 2017-2

EARNING RATIO:
The loss per share after tax works out to Rs. (0.53) {last year Rs. 0.40}.

PROVIDENT FUND

The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund covering all perma
employees. The value of the fund at the year end 30" June, 2018 is Rs.159.810 million.

investment values of the respective fund is as follows:

i Provident Fund

Last audited statements June 30, 2018
Investments at fair value Rs.(000s) 116,549

These funds are invested as given below:

Rs.(000s)

Unit Trust Schemes 52,656
Mutual Funds 1,492
Savings Schemes of Banks 2,991
Bank Deposits 21,257
Listed Securities 38.153
116,549

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Company has the policy to sanction certain amount to donate charitable institutions’ wo
the education, healthcare and uplift of under privileged segment of the society.

This year Company has provided donation 1o Hijaz hospital, Lahore Business Men Ass@
for Rehabilitation of the Disabled (LABARD), Punjab Veterans Cricket Association and
Khanum Hospital.

OUTSTANDING STATUTORY PAYMENTS

QUTSTANDING STAIVIVE . - ———

All outstanding payments are of routine nature.

11
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CODE OF CONDUCT

Company had developed Code of Conduct as provided by the Code of Corporate Governance.

This code of conduct is fully disseminated to all levels throughout the entity.

Company's Code of Conduct sets out standards expected of the entire team. This ensures that
the Company maintains good reputation by dealing and being seen to deal with all our business

contacts in a professional and acceptable way.

BOARD COMMITTEES
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Company has formulated Audit Committee in accordance with Code of Corporate Governance.
This committee is headed by an independent Director. Names of Audit Committee members are
given below:

Mian Zia Ud Din (Chairman)
ljaz Ahmed Khwaja (Member)
Ahmed Ali Riaz (Member)

Audit Committee provides assistance to the Board of Directors in discharging their
responsibilities in accordance with provisions of code of corporate governance and financial
reporting framework. This committee is also entrusted to implement an effective internal control
system and forward recommendations to the Board of Directors for further improve of the
systems.

Audit Committee's other responsibilities in the light of code of corporate governance also
include the following:

a) determination of appropriate measures to safeguard the Company's assets;
]
b) review of annual and interim financial statements of the Company, prior to their approval
by the Board of Directors, focusing on:

(i) major judgmental areas;
(ii) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;
(iii) going concern assumption;

(iv)  any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(v) compliance with applicable accounting standards;

(vi)  compliance with these regulations and other statutory and regulatory
requirements; and '

(vii)  all related party transactions,

c) review of preliminary announcements of results prior to external communication and
publication;

12
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d) facilitating the external audit and discussion with external auditors of major observations
arising from interim and final audits and any matter that the auditors may wish to
highlight (in the absence of management, where necessary);

e) review of management letter issued by external auditors and management's response
thereto;

f) ensuring coordination between the internal and external auditors of the Company:

g) review of the scope and extent of internal audit, audit plan, reporting framework and
procedures and ensuring that the internal audit function has adequate resources and is
appropriately placed within the Company;

h) consideration of major findings of internal investigations of activities characterized by
fraud, corruption and abuse of power and management's response thereto;

i) ascertaining that the internal control systems including financial and operational controls,
accounting systems for timely and appropriate recording of purchases and sale, receipts
and payments, assets and liabilites and the reporting structure are adequate and
effective;

J) review of the listed Company's statement on internal control systems prior to
endorsement by the Board of Directors and internal audit reports;

k) instituting special projects, value for money studies or other investigations on any matter
specified by the Board of Directors, in consultation with the CEQ and to consider
remittance of any matter to the external auditors or to any other external body;

) determination of compliance with relevant statutory requirements:

m) monitoring compliance with the regulations and identification of significant violations
thereof;

* n) review of arrangement for staff and management to report the audit committee in
confidence, concerns if any, about actual or potential improprieties in financial and other
matters and recommend instituting remedial and mitigating measures;

o) recommend to the Board of Directors the appointment of external auditors, their removal,
audit fees, the provision of any service permissible to be rendered to the Company by
the external auditors in addition to audit of its financial statements. The board of
directors shall give due consideration to the recommendations of the audit committee
and where it acts otherwise it shall record the reasons thereof; and

p) consideration of any other issue or matter as may be assigned by the Board of Directors.

13
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Company has constituted human resource and remuneration (HR & R) committee as required
by Code of Corporate Governance. Company has succeeded in attracting the quality human
resource through implementation of policies of the committee.

Human resource and remuneration committee ( HR & R ) include the following Directors:

Mian Zia Ud Din (Chairman)

Khwaja Imtiaz Ahmed (Member)

Umer Riaz Khwaja

(Member)

"

In accordance with code of corporate governance, the responsibilities of the committee include:

Vi.

recommend to the Board for consideration and approval a policy framework
for determining remuneration of directors (both executive and non-executive
Directors and members of senior management);

undertaking annually a formal process of evaluation of performance of the
Board as a whole and its committees either directly or by engaging external
independent consultant;

recommending human resource management policies to the Board;

recommending to the Board the selection, evaluation, development,
compensation (including retirement benefits) of chief operating officer, chief
financial officer, Company secretary and head of internal audit;

consideration and approval on recommendations of Chief Executive Officer
on such matters for key management positions who report directly to Chief
Executive Officer or Chief Operating Officer; and

where human resource and remuneration consultants are appointed, their
credentials shall be known by the committee and a statement shall be made
by them as to whether they have any other connection with the Company.

RISK AND UNCERTINITIES

Company is presently exposed to following risk areas which can affect the business operations

and ultimately profitability of the Company:

Raw material prices (crushed bone).

Foreign currency exchange rate.
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Energy (availability and prices of gas & electricity)

Basic raw material of the Company (crushed bone) is being exported to China, Japan and Iran
from Pakistan. Crushed bone is being exported without making it available to value addition
industry Gelatine manufacturing and other allied industries.

Depreciation of Pak Rupee and prevailing inflation rate can badly affect the cost of other
industrial inputs including imported chemicals needed to be used in Gelatine manufacturing
process. Hence cost of sales can escalate.

Energy crises especially with respect to availability of gas is getting worse with in the country
and Government is importing LNG from Qatar to cater the industrial reqguirement. In the light of
summary forwarded by OGRA, Government has increased gas prices from 40% to 143%. This
heavy increase in gas prices can further inflate the manufacturing cost of local industry including
Gelatine manufacturing.

IMPACT ON ENVIRONMENT

Our Company is pioneer in Pakistan in Gelatine manufacturing and it is the only purpose built
factory where installed machinery and equipments are mostly European origin. Manufacturing
process of Gelatine is designed in accordance with internétional practices and no any
hazardous impact on the environment is traced. Furthermore, our Company is awarded with
ISO-14000 certification from SGS Pakistan in the wake of adopting environment friendly
practices at our factory premises.

REASONS OF LOSS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

It is explained that unprecedented increase in raw material prices (both local and imported) and
continuous hike in energy cost in ramification of prevailing inflation rate and devaluation of Pak
Rupee left Low margins. Prices of the Gelatine could not be revised as most of the sales
contracts were finalized at the inception of the financial year. Resultantly Company'’s financials
were closed at Rs. 3.742/- million (profit before tax) and loss after tax of Rs. 3.956/- million.

Company's management has decided to procure raw material direct from the source to avoid
middle man role. This step shall help in stabilizing the prices of crushed bone.

The management is paying top priority to the energy conservation. During the year the addition
of new chilling systems in plant and machinery is a step forward in this regard. More such
initiates are under active consideration. It is also decided to increase the proportion of cheaper
alternate fuel and reduce the usage of high priced gas for energy requirements of the Company.

15
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Negotiation with local and foreign buyers are also in process for the revision of Gelatine prices.
Management is hopeful that present devaluation of Pak Rupee can also serve to increase the
export proportion of the total sales. Realization of foreign currency in terms of Pak Rupee will
also bring revenue benefit to the Company in future export sales.

TRAINING PROGRAMME OF DIRECTORS

Company offers refresher courses to its Directors and other executives to keep them updated
with the recent changes occurring in Pakistan and on the globe.

All of our Directors, which were required under Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017, are either exempt from training or have completed Directors
Training Programme (DTP) with recognized institutions from Pakistan Institute Corporate
Governance. One female non-executive director appointed during the year to fill a casual
vacancy will undertake the DTP in due course of time under the Regulations.

Directors Training Programme and other orientation courses are playing vital role in their
capacity building.

TRADE IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY
During the year following movements has been seen in share holding of one of Director:
Shares Sold

Khawaja Ahmed Hassan 200

There is no any sale / purchase / transfer of the Company shares by other Directors,
Executives, their spouse and minor children except above shares transaction.

AUDITORS:

The present auditors, M/s M. Almas & Co. Chartered Accountants, Lahore, has completed their
assignment for the year ended June 30, 2018 and shall retire on the conclusion of 35" Annual
Gengral Meeting. The retiring auditors M/s M. Almas & Co. Chartered Accountants are eligible
for re-appointment.

In accordance with The Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017,
the audit committee considered and recommended the re-appointment of M/s M. Aimas & Co.
Chartered Accountants as statuary auditors for the year 2018-19,

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

It appears on page no:-——-—-T-g--—-

16
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors would like to express their appreciation for the efforts and dedication of
all employees which enabled the Company's management to run the business affairs smoothly.

| Mo At

K AHMED IBRAR AHMED KHAWAJA

Chief Executive & Director
Managing Director
Lahore:

Dated: October 04, 2018
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Leiner Pak Gelatine Ltd. 2017-2018
Statement of Value Addition & Wealth Distribution
for the year ended June 30, 2018
2018 %age 2017 Yoage
(Rs. '000') (Rs. '000")
Value addition
Total revenue 823,047 754,173
Bought in materials & services (608,655) (551,484)
214,392 100.0% 202,689 100.0%
Value distribution
To employees
Salaries, wages and benefits 116,839 54.5% 111,733 55.1%
To Government
Income taxes and Sales Tax 76,884  35.9% 69,118 34.1%
To providers of capital/funds
Interest/Mark up on borrowed funds 12,467 5.8% 12,103 6.0%
Retained for reinvestment and growth
Depreciation & retained profits/(loss) 8,202 3.8% 9,735 4.8%
214,392 100% 202,689 100%
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE), REGULATIONS, 2017

Name of the Company: Leiner Pak Gelatine Limited

Year ended: June 30, 2018

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are 7 as per the following:

a. Male: 6

b. Female: 1

Sr. No. Name of Directors
12 Ahmed Ali Riaz
2. Khwaja Imtiaz Ahmed
3. liaz Ahmed Khwaja
4. Ibrar Ahmed Khwaja
5. Umer Riaz Khwaja
6. Mian Zia Ud Din
745 Ayesha Ahmed

2. The composition of board is as follows:
a) Independent Director(s) (1)

b) Other Non-executive Directors (4)

¢) Executive Directors (2)

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a Director on more than five listed
companies, including this Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies
where applicable).
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4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the
dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations.

7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a
director elected by the board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of
Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting
of Board.

8. The Board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9. Three of the Directors have completed the Directors’ Training Programme. Out of the remaining
four directors three have the prescribed qualification and experience required for exemption of
Directors’ Training Programme.

10. The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal
Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with
relevant requirements of the Regulations.

11. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.
12. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee (Name of members and Chairman)

s 1. Mian Zia Ud Din (Chairman)
2. ljaz Ahmed Khwaja (Member)
3. Ahmed Ali Riaz (Member)

b) HR and Remuneration Committee (Name of members and Chairman)

1. Mian Zia Ud Din (Chairman)
2. Khwaja Imtiaz Ahmed (Member)
3. Umer Riaz Khwaja (Member
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13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and
advised to the committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:
a) Audit Committee (4 quarterly meetings)
b) HR and Remuneration Committee (4 quarterly meetings)

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function within the organization. Head of
internal audit and other staff members of the internal audit team are considered suitably qualified
and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the
Company.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit
Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor
children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance
with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on Code of Ethics as adopted by
the ICAP

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard.

18.We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

CALD

LAHORE. AHMED ALI RIAZ
Dated: October 04, 2018 Chairman




Leiner Pak Gelatine Ltd.
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT

2017-2018

To the members of Leiner Pak Gelatine Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

T e —r—

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors
of Leiner Pak Gelatine Limited for the year ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the
status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does
not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents
prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective
audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on
internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such i
internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of
section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of
this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of

‘Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to
assess and determine the Company's process for identification of related parties and that
whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2018.

¢

Lahore /‘\—/M @Lo 3
Dated: October 04, 2018 M. Almas & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Audit Engagement Partner
Mohammad Almas
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Leiner Pak Gelatine Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Leiner Pak Gelatine Limited (the Company), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2018, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of
financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's
affairs as at June 30, 2018, and of the loss, other comprehensive income. the changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those slandards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other sthical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 2 in the financial statements, which indicates that the Company incurred a net loss of
Rupees. 3.956 million during the year ended June 30, 2018 and, as of that date. its accumulated loss was Rupees
7.737 million and its current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 67.210 million. As stated in Note 2, these
events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 2, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Qur opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separale opinion on these
matters. In addition to the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Gaing Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

1.Preparation of financial statements under
the Companies Act, 2017

We assessed the procedures appliad by the management for
As referred to in notes 45 and 6 of the | identification of the changes in disclosures and retrospective
accompanying financial statements, the | change in accounting policy required in financial statements
Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) became | dueto the application of the Act. We considered the adequacy
applicable for the first time for the preparation of | and appropriateness of the additional disclosures and changes

the Company's annual financial statements for | to the previous disclosures based on new reguirements. We
the year ended June 30, 2018. | also evaluated the sources of information used by the |
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The Act forms an integral part of the statutory

financial reporting framework as applicable to
the Company and amongst others, prescribes
the nature and content of disclosures in relation
to various elements of the financial statements.

In the case of the Company, specific additional
disclosures and changes fo the existing
disclosures including retrospective change in
accounting policy related to revaluation surplus
on property, plant and equipment have been
included in the financial statements as referred
to notes 45 and 6 respeclively of the
accompanying financial statements.

The aforementioned changes and
enhancements in the financial statements are
considered important and a key audit matter
because of the volume and significance of the
changes in the financial statements resulting
from the transition to the new reporting
requirements under the Act.

management for the preparation of lthe above referred
disclosures and internal consistency of such disclosures with
other elementis of the financial statements.

2. Review of recoverability of deferred tax
asset

(Refer to notes 5.13 and 17 of the financial
statements)

Under International Accounting Standard 12,
Income Taxes. the Company is required to
review recoverability of the deferred tax assets
recognized in the statement of financial position
at each reporting period,

Recognition of deferred tax asset position
involved management’'s estimate of future
available taxable profits of the Company based
on approved business plan. There is inherent
uncertainty involved in forecasting future
taxable profits and the probability of utilising the
estimated minimum tax credits. Therefore, the
recoverability of the Company's deferred tax
asset was considered a key audit matter in our
audit of the financial slalements.

We considered this a key audit matter due to
significant value of deferred tax asset on
account of minimum tax and assumptions used
by the management in this area.

Our procedures in relation to this matter included:

- Evaluating the Directors’ determination of the estimated
manner in which the deferred tax asset would be utilised by
comparing the Directors’ assessment to business plans and
profit forecasis based on our knowledge of the business and
the indusiry in which Company operates;

- Critically assessing whether profil forecasts are reasonable
in relation to historical frends, current year performance and
future plans;

- Analyzing the requirements of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001, in relation to above and considering the factors including
aging analysis, expiry periods of relevant deferred tax assels
and tax rates enacted; and

- Assessing the approprialeness of management's accounting
for deferred taxes and the accuracy of related disclosures.

3. Valuation of stock in trade

Refer note 5.4, 18 and 27 of the financial
statements.

Stock in trade as at year ended June 30, 2018
having carrying value of Rs. 197.264 million
constitutes 27.56% of total assets.

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of stock in trade,
amongst others, included the following:

- Obtaining an understanding of internal controls over
purchases and valuation of stock in trade and testing, on a
sample basis, their design, implementation and operating
effecliveness;
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We identified the valuation of stock in trade as | - Comparing on as sample basis specific purchases with
key audit matter as it directly affects the | underlying supporting documents / agreements, if any;
profitability of the Company.
- Comparing calculations of the allocation of direcily
attributable costs and allocation of factory overhead costs with
the underlying supporting documents;

- Physical observation of stock in frade inventory count at the
year end;

- Test of valuation methods and their appropriateness in
accordance with applicable accounting standards;

| - Obtaining an understanding of management's determination
of net realizable value (NRV) and the key estimates adopted,
including future selling prices, future costs to complete work in
process and costs necessary to make the sales and their
basis; and

- Comparing the NRV, on a sample basis, to the cost of
finished goods to assess whether any adjustments are
required to value stock in frade in accordance with applicable
accounting and reporting standards.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our respaonsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge cbtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017) and for such internal control as management delermines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable; matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
QOur objectives are to cbfain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and 1o issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
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with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judament and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company's intemal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audil evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report 1o the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to ceass to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation preciudes public disclosure about the
fatter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determire that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on aur audit, we further report that in our opinion;

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017);
b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive

income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in confermity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 201 7) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;
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c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose
of the Company's business: and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1880 (XVIIl of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Muhammad Almas.

| {"\—"ﬂ"eﬂ—/g@—a

| Lahore M. Almas & Co.
Date: October 04, 2018 Chartered Accountants

(o B W VI RN

e
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SATATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2018
Re-stated
Note 30 June 2018 30 June 2017 01 July 2016
e ——Rupees in thousand e ceeeen
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Share capital 7 75,000 75,000 75,000
Revenue Reserve.
Accumulated Loss (7.737) (3.781) (772)
Capital Reserve: )
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant 8 278,914 278,914 278,914
and aguipment
346,177 350,133 353,142
Non-current liabilities
Liabilities against assets subject to
finance lease 9 1,043 504 858
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 10 143,023 96,301 131,425
Unclaimed dividend 771 852 855
i Mark-up accrued 1 2,906 2803 2.206
| Short term berrowings 12 221,160 211129 164,032
Current portion of liabilities against assets subject to
| finance lease B 689 352 334
| 368,549 311,237 298,852
| Contingenciss and commitmenis 13 - =
715,769 661,874 652,850
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 414175 401,081 407,654
Intangible assets 15 = - -
Long term deposits 16 255 260 260
Deferred taxation 17 - - -
414,430 401,341 407,914
Current assets
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 18 42919 28,730 19,234
| Stock-in-trade 19 197,264 179,041 184,638
| Trade debts 20 14,672 13,334 3,784
| ABvances 21 1,736 5,241 1,980
| Trade deposits and short term prepayments 22 2,182 1,648 2,280
Other receivables 23 18,457 13,080 8,965
Advance income tax-nef 24 22,502 17,601 12,870
Cash and bank balances 25 607 1.890 1,175
301,339 260,533 244 6386
715,769 661,874 652,850
The annexed noles 1 to 47 form an integral part of these ncial statements.
Q“ a E’Iu_a_){ .
. IERAR AHMED KH. MUHAMMAD JAVAID
LAHORE Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer

Dated: October 04, 2018

& Managing Directar
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T

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Note 30 June 2018 30 June 2017
=------Rupees in thousand-—---—-
Sales-net 26 752,297 692372
Cost of sales 27 678,011 616,359
Gross profit 74,286 76,013
Other income 28 1,564 151
75,850 76,164
Distribution cost 29 2,379 3,423
Administrative expenses 30 54,499 55,174
Other operating expenses 31 2,208 1,558
Finance cost ¢ 32 13,022 11,549
Profit before taxation 3,742 4,460
Taxation 33 7,698 7.469
Loss afler taxation (3,956) (3,009)
Loss per share-basic and diluted (Rupees) 34 (0.53) (0.40)

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Ol A 6/4/&2

. D IBRAR AHMED KH. MUHAMMAD JAVAID
LAHORE Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
Dated: October 04, 2018 & Managing Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
----==-Rupees in thousand

Loss after taxation (3.956) (3.009)

Other comprehensive income - =
Total comprehensive loss for the year (3,956) (3.009)

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

) N Dbkt o4 TR

“

B IBRAR AHMED KH. MUHAMMAD JAVAID
LAHORE Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
Dated: October 04, 2018 & Managing Director
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES |IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Reserves
Share capital “Revenue Reserve Capital Reserve

Issued, Surplus on
subscribed and revaluation of
paid up share Accumulated loss property, plant and Total
capital equipment

Rupees in thousand

Balance at 01 July, 2016 75,000 (772) - 74,228
Impact of re-statement - note 6 A - 278,814 278,914
Balance as at 01 July, 2016 re-stated 75,000 772) 278,914 353,142
Total comprahensive loss for the year - {3.009) - {3,009)
Balance at June 30, 2017 re-stated 75,000 (3.781) 278,914 350,133
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (3,956) - (3,956)
Balance at June 30, 2018 75,000 (7,737) 278,914 346,177

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

o D bt 4alES

i IBRAR AHMED KH. MUHAMMAD JAVAID
LAHCRE Chiefl Exacutive Directer Chief Financial Officer
Dated: Ootober 04, 2018 & Managing Director
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
[ Fo] T = Rupees in thousand--—--
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
| Cash generated from / (used in) operations 35 47,085 (9,222)
Finarce cost paid (12,607) (11,074)
Payments to provident fund (2,587) (2,690)
Taxes paid (12,599) (12,200)
Sales tax paid (6,462) (4,688)
Workers' Welfare Fund paid {213) -
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 12,617 (39,874)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
' Additiens to property, plant and equipment (25,381) (6,171)
Proceeds from dispesal of property, plant and equipment 650 -
Increase in long term deposits 5 -
Net cash used in investing activities (24,726) (6,171)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase / (decrease) in liabilities against assels subject to finance lease 876 (334)
Dividend paid (81) ()]
Proceeds from short-term financing from banking companies
Proceeds from shori-term financing from banking companies 6,023 45,247
Net increase in short term borrowings 4,008 1,850
Net cash generated from financing activities 10,826 46,760
Net (decrease) | increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,283) 715
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,890 1,175
: Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 36 607 1.890

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

. Do Aot 94@

[ IBRAR AHMED KH. MUHAMMAD JAVAID
LAHORE Chiet Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
Dated: October 04, 2018 & Managing Director

|
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2018

3

4.1

4.2

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Leiner Pak Galating Limited (‘the Company’) was incerporated in Pakistan on 14 February 1983 as a public limited Company. The
registered affice of the Company s situated at 17-G. Gulberg |l, Lahore and manufactuning facility is located al 19 Kilometer, shahrah-e-
Pakistan, Kala shah Kaku, District Sheikhupura. The Company is lisied on {he Pakistan Stock Exchangs. The principal activity of the
Company IS manufacturing and sale of gelatine and di-calcium phosphate atc., produced from animal bones.

GOING CONCERN BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

During tha year ended June 30, 2018 Company incurred 3 net joss of Rupees 3.g56 million and, 88 of that date, its accumulated (0SS
was Rupees 7.737 million and its curent |labilities exceeded ils current assets by Rupess &7.210 million. These events or condiions
indicate thata material uncertainty exists thal may cast significant doubt on the Gompany's ability 1o continue as a going concerm and,
therefora, the Company may be unabie 10 realize its assels and discharge s fiabilities in the normal course af business.

Due to the proposed use of anergy conservation measures and future procurement of raw materials direct from the source by avoiding
the middle man role, the approved financial projections, therafora, show improvemants and profitability- Further, keaping In view the
following factors, the management foresees that the Company will continue to be @ going concern.

There is continued damand for the products cf the Company. pamand of ‘Halal" Gelatine exists in foreign and local markets
as “Halal" Gelating is equally consumed in Muslim and non-Musfim ceuntries Afier renawal of sales contracts with big
customers and davaluation of Pakisian Rupee, the lacal as well as axport sales respectively ars expactad to increass in
future.

™ Major financing arrangemenis with bank as at June 30, 2018 are valid for future periods 88 well

= There is continued snancal support of fhe Company's Sponsors. The sponsars’ of the Company have nducted Rupess 35302
million (June 30, 2017: Rupess 31 244 miliion) interest free loans up to Juna 30,2018, They are also committad to indust
further funds. if the need arises, to address any iquidity |ssues for smooth oparations.

Apart from the afgrementioned factors there are glso positive indicators as per these financial statemems as mentioned below:

a) |nerease in production and sales over the last year,
o) The existence of fEW sgles orders along with advance payments received there sgainst; and
c) Continuous existence of profits pefore tasation since July 1, 2014 1o date.

These financial statements have, therefore, been prepared using going concern pasis of aceounting and. accordingly, do not
include any adjustments relating to realizaton of its assels and tha liquidation of any liabilites that might be necessary should
the Company be unable to continue as & golng concern

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS AFFECTING THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL POSITION AND PERFORMANCE
The financial position and performance of the Company was affectad by the following events and yansactions during the year:

a) Dueto the first time application of the fnancial reporting requiremants under the Companies Act, 2047 (The Act) including the
disclogure and presentation requirements of the fourth achedule of the Act, some of the ameounts reported for the previous
period have hean reclassified as detalled in notes & and 47.2 to these financial statements.

gy The accounting poiicy relating o revaluation of property, pant and equipment changed during the year as detalled In note Eto
these financial statements,

oy There is djosing stock of work in process yaluing RS, 63485 million as at June 30, 2018 and the Company has purchased
semi-finished produdis Res. 10,742 million during the year.

dy For detailed discussion about the Company's performancs please refer to the Diretiors’ Report accompanied in the annual
report of the Company for the current year.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

Tnese financial statements have been praparad N accordance with ne accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
The accountng and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of.

_ |njernational Finansial Raeporting standards (IFRSS) |esued by the Intarnational Accounting Standarcs Board (IASE) as notified under
the Companies Act, 2017 and

- Provisions of and directives issued \nder the Companies Act, 2017,

\Where provisions of and directives issuad under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs. the provisians af and diectves issued
under the Companies Act, 2017 have bean folowed.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except far freshold land at revalued amount, In
thase financial statemenis, sxcept for the sttoment of cash fiows, all transactions have besn aceounted for on accrual basis.
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4.3 Judgments, estimates and assumptions

expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions and udgmenis are based on historical experience and various other faciors that
are beflaved to be reasonable under the circumsiances; the result of which forms the basis of making judgments about carying value of
assets and liabilities that are nat readlly apparent from other sources, Actual results may differ from these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods afiected,

Judgments made by management in the application of approved accounting standards that have si

gnificant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the subsequent

years are discussed in the nots - 37,

4.4 Functional and presentation currency

ing the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates. The financial statsmenis are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

45 Newand amended standards and Iinterpretations

4.51 New and amended standards and interpretations that are effective in the current year

(a) The fourth schedule to (e Companies Act, 2017 {The Act) became applicable to the Company for he first time for the preparation of
these financial statemsnts, The Act (including its fourth scheduls) forms an integral part of the

A statutory financial reporting framework
applicable to the Company and amangst other, prescribes the naturs and cantent of disclosures In refaticn 1o various elements of the
ts.

— elimination of duplicative disclosures with the IFRS disciosure requirements; and
- incorparation of significant additional disclosures,

~ Specific additional disclosures and changes

to the existing disclosures as & result of this change are stated in notes 3, 41,51, 6, 8.2
10.14.5. 146, 14.7, 20, 33.3, 41, 43, and 45.

{b) The Company has adopted the following accounting standards during the currant year:
-IAS7  Statement of Cash Flows — Disclosurs initiative (Amendment)

=IAS12  |ncome Taxes— Recognition of Deferred Tax Asset for Unrealized Lossas (Amendment)
The adoption of IAS 7 amendmant has resulted into cenain disdosure reguirements as detailed in note 351 to these financial
siatements while amendment of IAS 12 did not have any affect on the financial statements,

4.5.2 New and amended standards and interpretations

Following are new and amended standards and inte
beginning on or afier their respective dates,

] Standards or interpratation: Effactive date

(accounting periods
beginning on or after)

IAS 19 Employee benefits (Amendments) January 1, 2019

IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amengments) January 1, 2018

IAS 40 Investment property (Amendmenits) January 1, 2018

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment (Amendmants) January 1, 2018

IFRS 4 Insurance contracts (Amendments) January 1, 2018

IFRS @ Financial Instruments July 1, 2018

IFRS 15 Reverue from Contracts with Customiers July 1, 2018

IFRS 16 Leases January 1, 2019

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

January 1, 2018
[IFRIC 23 Uncertainty Over Incoms Tax

January 1, 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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anticipates that e adoption of the gbave standards, amendmants and interpretations in
ures. The managementis in ine process

the financial statements othar than the impact on pTEsur\mﬂona'disc‘.los

The management
own by the {FRS 9, 152and 16 on its financial statemants.

material impact on
ascessing the impact of changes laid di

5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently 1o 2l periods prasented in the financial siatements except for
4 in note 6 to these financial staiements.

changa in accounting policy a8 mentione

5.1 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement
pment are tangible items that are Held for use production or supply of goods Of servi
are expected 12 pe ysed durng more than one year. AR item of property
future economic penefits assaciated with the item will flow 1o the
1 property. plant and equipment are measured at ©

Property, plant and squl
or for administrative purposes and
recognized when it is probable that
be measured refably. On initial recogrition, {tems o
that are direclly attributable to the acquisition of the item

eguipment are measured at cost less accumuiated deprec

gnition, ilems of property, ptant and
asured at revalued amount

Subsequent © inifial reco
of freehold jenid which is me

impalrment lo5ses with the exception

Parts of an item of property, piant and eguipment having different yseful lives are recagnizad as separnate Hems
& carrying amount of t

pment are recogrized o thy
Swal O iy

< to an item of aroperty, piant and aqul
will flow to the Company and the cost of 1en

Maior renewals and improvement
t are recognized in profitof loss

orobable that he embodied future economic bensfis
reliably. The cost of the day-lo-day servicing of property, plant and egquipmen

aluation of land and bulldings are &

ncurred.

s | the camying armounts arising en ey cognised, net of tax
and accumulated in revaluation syrplus in sharenoiders’ pauity. To the axtent that increass feverses a os
in the statement of profit or 1088 the increase 18 first recogrised N +he statement of profit or 1o

increases of ihe same asset are first recognised N other comprehensive income to the extent of th
asset; all othsr decreases arg charged to the statement of profit of |oss. Each year, N8 difference
revaiued carmying amount of the asset charged 10 \he statement of profit or 1088 and deprecigtion bas
of tex; 1S raclassified from revaluation surplus o0 Pf operty, prant and equipment 1o unappropristed profit

incredse

remal

tween deprn

Capital work-in-progress

Capital Wwork-n-progress i stated at-cost 1esS accumulated impairment l0SSeSs, if any

Depreciation

rofit or loss by applying reducing balance miathod aver the useful lite ©

Depreciation 1S recognized in p
=14.1tothe financial statements.

enquipment ysing the rates specified in not
Depreciation on additions to propery. plant and equipment = ¢harged from he manin in wihich e item
Depreciation 1S discontinuea from the month in which the frem s disposad or classified a5 held for disposal

The depreciaion method, useful lives and residual velues are reviewed and adjusted if appropriste. at gach reporing date

pe-recognition
An ftem of property. plant and equipmant {s de-recognized on disposal o whien no future sconamic benefits:are axpech
loss on disposal of property, plart and squipment S recognized in profit or 1055

disposal, Any profit ar

52 Intangible assets

An intangible asset s an identifiable non-rrantony acset without physical substance.
15 will low to the en

= that the expeciad future beneft
renase cost a@n

Intangitle assats are racngnized when itis probabl
computer software) includss pu

be messurad reliably. Cost of intangible asset (i2

incidarial to brrg the asset for 11s intended use

Cost associated with maintaining computer software are recognized as an expense as and when Incurred.
|ntanglote assels are statedd #i cost 1888 aceumutated amortization and accumulated irnpairment |osses
ified in note 1Bon a systematic basis applying tha straight line methiod.

over the estimated usaful life of the asselas Spec

Useful lives of intangible operating assets are eVl

awed, al each repofting date and adjusted if the impact of amortization

5.3 Stores, spare parts and loose tools

related expenses incurred
o of weighted average.
usabllity.

ransit which are valugd at invoice price plus
alue. Costis detarmined on e basi

These are generally held for internal us?2 and. except for tems in
¢s hast estimate regarding thigir future

up to the reporting date, ars yalued at lower of cost and net realizable v
pravision for ghsolete and sIOW oving items IS made based o0 managemen

a7

future periods. will have no

ces, for rentals 10 plhers

plant and gauipment 1S
entity and the cost of the item can
t Cost includes expendiures

he flam IfiLis
ament can be measured

gr comprehensive i
=& previously recognis
. Decreases that reverse previous
ing surplus attributable 10 fhe
scigtion based on the
she assst's onging!

ot gach item of sroperty, Pl

pecomes available for use.

&d from its usa of

fity and e costof the asset can
d directly atiributable ax

if any. Amortization |
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NOTES TD THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

54 Stock-in-trade

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value 'Gost Is getermined using the following basis:

Raw material Weighted average cost

Work-in-process Average manufacturing cost

Finished goods Average manufacturing cost

Raw material in transit Invoice price plus related expenses incurred up fo the reporting date.

Average manufacturing cost in relation to work-in-process and finished goods consists of direct matenal, labour and a proportion of
appropriate manufacturing overheads

Net reaiizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business lsss estimated costs of completion and
estimaled costs necessary lo make ths sale,

For items which are slow maving, a pravision i made for excess of camrying amount over estimated net realizable value.
5.5 Financial instruments

Recognition

A financial instrument is recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

De-recognition

Measurement
The particular measurement methods adopted are disclosed in the individuat poiicy statements associated with each instrument.
Off-setting

A financial asset and a Ninancial llabiiity is offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial postion if the Company has
lagally enforceable right o set-off (he recognized amounts and intends either to settls on net basis or fo realize the asset and saitle the
liability simultanecusly.

5.6 Bomrowings
These are recognized initially at fair value less atiributable transacton cost. Subsequent 1o Initial recognition, these are stated at

amortization cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognized in the profit or loss over the period of
borrowings on an effective interast basis

5.7 Leased assets

Leases in terme of which the Company assumes substantially all risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases, Upon
initial recognition, the leased assat is measdred at an amount aqual to ihe lower of its fair value and the prasent value of minimum lease
paymenis. Subsequent 1o inifial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset
Minimum lease payments made under finance leases @re apportioned bstween the finance charge and the reduction of outstanding
liability, The finance chargs is allocated to each period during the lsase termso as to produce a constant pariodic rate of intsrest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Leased dssats are depreciated over their useful lives by applying reducing balance method using rate
specified in note - 14.1.

Leases that do not transfer substantially all risks and rewsrds of ownership are classified as operating leases | ljara, Payments made
under sperating lezses / ljara are recognized in prafit or foss on a straight Iine basis over the lease / ljara term.

5.8 Employee benefits
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit under which an entity pays fixed contribufion into a separate entity and will
have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligation for contribution to a defined contribution plan is recognized as
an employse service benefit expense in the statement of profit or loss when it s due.

The Company operates a recognized provident fund for gl its regular employees. Equal monthly contributions are mads to the fund both
by the Company and employees al the rate of 8 5% of the basic salary. The fund is administrated by the Trustess,

5.9 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payaties are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amorfized cost.

5.10 Trada debts and other receivables

Trade debis and other receivables are gnized Initially at fair value and subsequently measursd at amortized cost less impaiment
loss, If any. 3

‘511 Ravenue

Revanue is maasursd at fair value of the consideration received or receivadle, nat of returns, all es, frade di itz and rebates,
and represents amounia received or receivable for goods and services provided and other operaling income earried in the normal
course of business. Revenue is recognized when it is prabable ihat the economic benefils assadiated with the transaction will flow to the
Company, and the amount of revenue and assaciated costs incurred o to be incurred can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sale of goods Is recognized when risk and rewards incidental to the ownarship of goods are transferrad, i.e. on dispatch

438
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5.13

5.14

5.15
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asseis, which are assets that necessanly
take a substantial period of time to gat ready for their intended use or sale, or added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Invesiment income earnad on the lemporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying asset Is deducted from the berrowing costs eligible for capialization. All other
borrowing costs are recognized in the profit or loss as incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income fax expense s recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that
it relates to items recognized diractly in aquity, in which case it is recognized in equity

Current tax is the amount of 1ax payable on taxable Income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by he
reporting date, and any adjustment to the lax payable in respect of previous years. Provision for current tax s based on taxable income
at current rates of taxation applicable in Pakistan afier taking into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any.
However, for income covered undar final tax regime, 1axation [s based on applicable tax rates under such regime. The amount of unpaid
income tax in respect of the current or prior periods Is recognized as a liabiiity. Any sxcess paid over what |s due in respect of the
current of prior periods is recognized as an asset.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the baiance sheet liability method praviding for temporary differances between the carmying amounts
of assats and liabilifies for the financial reporfing purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. [n this regard, the effects on deferred
taxation of the portion of income that is subject to final tax regime is also considered in accordance with the requirement of "Technizal
Release-27" of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

Deferred tax is measured at rates that are expected (o be applied o the temporary differences when they reverse based on laws that
have been enacled or substantively enacled by the reporting date. A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary
differences. A deferred iax asset is recognized for deductible temporary differences to the extent that future taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be ullized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probabie that the related tax benefit Will be reaflzed.

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributabie to ordinary sharehoiders of the Company by the weightad average
number of ardinary shares outstanding during the period

Diluted EPS is calculatad by adjusting basic EPS by the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on
conversion of all dilutive potential erdinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in profit or loss atiributable 1o
ordinary sharaholders of the Company that would resull from conversien of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Cash and cash equivalents

Gash and cash equivalents for the purpoese of statement of cash flows comprise eash and bank balances. Cash and cash equivalents
are carried at cost.

Foreign currency transactions

Transasctions in forsign currency are transiatad to the functional currency of the Company using exchange rate at the date of transacton.
Manetary assels and liabilities denominated in foraign currency at the reporing date are franslated to the functional currency at
exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary assets and lianilitiss denominated in foreign currency that are measured at fair value are
translated to the functional currency at exchange rate at the date that fair value was determiped. Non-monetary assets and liabililies

danominatad in foraign currency that are measursd at historical cost are translated to the functional currency at exchange rate at the
date of transaction. Any gain or loss arising on fransaction is recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment

Financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at sach reporting date to determine whether there is any ohjective evidence that it is impaired A financial
assel is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negativa affect on the sstimated
future cash flows of that asset, Individually significant inancial assets are testad for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining
financial assets are sssessed callastively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics Al impairment |osses are recognized in
the statement of profit or loss. An impairment lass is reversed if the raversal can be related objectively to an event occuming sfter
impairment loss was recognized.

Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the non-financial assets are assessed al each reporting dale o ascertain whether thero is any Indication of
impairment, I such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amounl is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss. An
impairment loss Is recognized in statement of profit or joss. The recaverable amount s the higher of an asset's fair value losz costs of
disposal and value-in-use. Valus-in-use is ascertainad through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that
reflects current markst assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets For the purpose of assessing
impalrment, assets are grouped at the lowest levela for which there are saparately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). An
impairment oss is réversed if there is a change in the sstimates used to determing the recoverable amount. An Impaiment loss is
reversed only to the exient that asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been delermined, net of
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment less had baen recngnized.
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5.18

5.19

6.20

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal and constructive obligation as a result of past events, and il is probable
that outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required lo settle the obligation and a rellable estimate can be made of
the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted fo refiect the correct best eslimate,

Dividend to shareholders

Dividend paid to sharsholders is recognized in the year in which it is declared

Sagmaent reporting

Sagment information is presentad on the same basis as thal used for internal reporting purposes by the Chief Operating Decision
Maker, who Is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the basis of its intemal
reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a single reportable segmen!t, however, certain |nformation, as required by the
approved accounting standards, is presented in note 40 1o these financial statements.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

The spacific provision | section in the repeled Companies Ordinance, 1984 relaling to the surplus on revaluation of fixed assels hasnol

been carried farward in the Companies Act, 2017. Praviously,

section 235 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 specified the

accounting treatment and presentation of the surplus on revaluation of fixed asssts, which was nof in accordance with the IFRS

raquirements. Accordingly, In 2ccordance with the requirements o

f International Accounting Standard (IAS) 16, Property, Plant and

Equipment, surplus on revaluation of fixed assets would now be presented under equity.

Following the-application of 1AS 16, the Company's accounting policy for surplus on revaluation of land and building stands amended as

follows:

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of land and buildings are recognised, net of tax, in other comprehensive incoma
and acoumulated in revaluation surplus in shareholders’ equity. To the exient that increase reverses a decrease prevlously recognised
i the statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Decresses that reverse previous
incrasses of fhe same assat are firet recognisad in other comprahensive income to the extant of the remaining surplus attributable lo the
assst all other decreases are chargad to the statement of profit or loss. Each year, the difference between depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the statemant of profit or lose and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net

of tax, is redh

fied from revalustion surplus on property, plant and squipment to unappropriated profit.

The change in acoounting policy has been accounted for retrospectively in accordance with the requiraments of IAS 8 'Accounting
Policies, Changes in Ascounting Estimates and Errors’ and comparative figures have been restated,

The effect of change inaccounting policy is summarised below:

As at June 30,2017

As

previously As re-stated Re-statement

reported

Effect on statement of financial position

Surplue on revaluation of property,

plant and equipment 278914 -
Share capital and ressrves - 278,914

Effect on statement of changes in aquity
Revaluation surplus on property,
plant and equipment - 275914

Effect on statement of comprehensive income

Gain on revaluation of land

As at July 01, 2016

As
previously As re-stated Re-statement
reported
o RUDPEES N thOUSANG. ovieniinrimrii i st
(278.914) 278,914 - (278914)
278914 - 278,914 278914
278.914 278,914 278914

For the year ended June 30. 2017
AsS
previously Asre d Re t
reported

e e PR ) EIMOBETN, i

Thers was ne impact on Cash Flow and Other Compréhensive income as a resull of the retrospective application of charge in
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7

71

8.1

82

8.3

91

SHARE CAPITAL 30 June 2018 30 June 2017
—--—Rupees in thousand-—---+=-

Authorised share capital

10,000,000 (June 30, 2017: 10,000,000) ordinary shares 100,000 100,000

of Rupees 10 each
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

7,500,000 (June 30, 2017: 7.500,000) ordinary shares of
Rupess 10 each issued as fully paid in cash 75,000 75,000

75,000 75.000

Ordinary shares of the Company held by associated undertaking as at year end are as follows:
30 June 2018 30 June 2017

(Number of shares)

INA Securities (Private) Limited 370,000 370,000
370,000 370,000

There is commaon directorship between the companiss.

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 30 June 2018 30 June 2017
—-—Rupees in thousand———-
Revaluation surplus -note- 8.1 278,914 278,014
Revaluation surplus
Revaluation surplus relating fo revaluation carried oul at June 30, 1980 8,873 8873
Reavaluation surplus relating o revaluation carried out at June 09, 2008 69,325 68,325
Revaluation surplus relating to revaluation cerried out al April 05, 2012 85,936 85935
Revaluation surplus relating to revaluation carried out at April 26, 2016 114,780 114,780
278,914 278914

The Company had revalued its freehold land on June 301990, Jure 09, 2008, April 05, 2012 and April 26, 2016. The revaluation was
carried out by independent valuers Mr. Anwar ul Haq in 1990 and M/S Hamid Mukhtar & Co. in 2008, 2012 and 2016 respectively to
replace the camying amount of land with local market values. The following aggregated net appraisal surpius arisen on the revaluation
on June 30, 1990, June 08, 2008, April 05, 2012 and April 26, 2016 was credited fo surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment.

Book Re-valued Surplus on re-
value amount valuation
= -———-Rupees in thousand |
Freehold land 7,626 286,740 278,914
7.826 285,740 178,914

Since the revaluation relate to freehold land which is a non-depreciable asset, no deferred tax liabllity arises on revaluation. In the
absence of depreciable amount no incremental depreciation net off deferred tax transferred to unappropriated profit nor any disclosure
ragarding these have been made in the above note.

LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE 30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Rupees in thousand
Present value of minimum lease payments 1,732 856
Less: current portion presented under current liabilities -note- 9.2 689 352
1,043 504

This represents two vehicles acquired under finance lease arangement. The value of the minimum lease payments has baen
discounted at implicit mark up rates of 3 months KIBOR plus 1,50 % (June 30, 2017: 3 monihis KIBOR plus 1.50 %) to arrive at their
present value. Lease rentals are payable monthly cver tenure of the lease which is five years. Under the lerms of the agreement, taxes,
repairs, replacements and insurance costs in respect of assets subject o finance lease are borne by the Company. The Company has
the option to purchase these assets at the end of the lease term by adiusting the deposits Rupees 0,259 million and 0.254 million
respeclively (June 30, 2017: Rupees 0258 million and nil) and intends to exercise the option. These are secured against the above
deposit, title of ownership of leased asssts.
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9.2 Future minimum payments and their present values are regrouped as under:
RuE in th d
2018 2017
more than one year more than one
Over one | butless than five | Over one year |year but less than
year years five years
Total minimum lease paymenis 774 1,190 395 523
| Less : Finance charges (85) (147) (43) (19)
Prasent value of minimum lease payments 689 1,043 352 504
10 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Rup in the d
Creditors 87,523 71,868
Accrued liabilities 20,961 12,768
Advances from customers - unsecured 21,942 9,345
Payable to provident fund -note- 43 704 583
Income tax withheld payable 25 50
Workers' Profit Participation Fund -note- 10.1 1,392 1,074
Workers' Welfare Fund 478 €13
143,023 95,301
10.1  Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) 30 June 2018 30 June 2017
-——----Rupees in thousand-----—-
Balance at beginning of the year 1,074 751
Interest on funds utilized in Company's
business -note- 32 m 78
Allocation | expenses for the year -note- 31 207 245
1,392 1,074
Less: paid to the fund during the year = -
1,392 1,074
Interest is paid at prescribed rate under the Companies Profits (Workers' Participation) Act, 1968 on funds utilizad by the Company till
the date of allocation lo workars,
1 MARK-UP ACCRUED 30 June 2018 30 June 2017
-—---Rupees in thousand
On borrowings from banking companies-secured
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 5 4
Short term borrowings 2,901 2,509
2,906 2,603
12 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
From banking companies-secured
Finance against packing credit (FAPC-1)
. Bank Al-Habib Limited -note- 12.1, 12.6 - 21,908
Short term finance (STF)
Bank Al-Habib Limited -note- 12.1, 12.6 18,054 -
Short Term Finance agains! payables
Bank Al-Habib Limited -note- 12.2, 12.6 15,000 -
Short Term Finance against IBP receivables
Bank Al-Habib Limited -note- 12.3, 12.6 10,000 -
Running finance
Bank Al-Habib Limited -note- 12.4, 12.6 110,586 127.201
Sumimil Bank Limited -note- 12.5, 12.7 32,218 30.726
185,858 179,835
From related parties-unsecured
Loans from direciors / ex-director / share holder -note- 12.10 35,302 31,294
221,160 211129
121 The bank has granted a ona-off Short Term Finance (STF) facllity of Rupees 25 million for the adjustment of outstanding balance of
FAPC-1. The said STF Is to be repaid in 12 manths commencing October 2017 in equal monthly instalments to be reckoned from the
respective adjustmentiroll over pariod of 180 days of FAPC-1. STF carmiea mark-up at three months KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum
. payable guarterly. (June 30, 2017 Rupees: nil).
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127

12.8

12.10

13
134
1314

13.1.2

13.2
13.21

The short term finance facility having sanctioned limit of Rupees 25 million (June 30, 201 7: Rupees nil) has been obtained from Bank
Al-Habib Limited for purchase of aw material. It caries mars-up at three months KIBOR plus 1.75% (June 30, 2017: nil) per annum
payable quarterly. The principle amountis to be repaid in 60 days through business cash fiows. Tiil the adjustment of FAPC-| this facility
is allowed upto Rupees 15 million only. The facility is valid ill February 07, 2021 with credit review of annual basis.

The IBP receivabie finance fadility having sanctionad limit of Rupees 25 million (June 30, 2017; Rupees nil) has bsen obtained from
Bank Al-Habib Limited for financing of receivables. It carries mark-up at three months KIBOR plus 1 75% (June 30, 2017: nil) per
annum. The principal amount is to ba repaid upon realization of export proceeds as per tenure of respective blll but nol later than 60
days from draw down date or on demand while mark-up is to be serviced upon adjustmant of each loan or at the end of each calendar
guarter whichever is earlier Till the adjustment of FAPC.! this facility is allowed upto Rupees 10 million only. The faclity is valid til
February 07, 2021 with credit review on annual basis.

The running finance facility having sanctioned limit of Rupees 85 millien (June 30, 2017: Rupees 70 million) has been obtained from
Bank Al-Habib Limited for working capital requirements. It cammies mark-up at three months KIBOR plus 1.75% (June 30, 2017. thres
months KIBOR plus 1.75%) per annhum payable quartery The sanctionad limil has tempararily been exceeded due o issuance of
cheques which will be presented after June 30, 2018, The facility is valid tll February 07, 2027 with credit review on annual hasis.

The running finance faciiity having sanctioned limit of Rupees 30 million (June 30, 2017: Rupees 30 million) has been obtained from
summil Bank Limited for working capital requirements: It carries mark-up at three months KIBOR plus 2.50% (June 30, 2017: three
months KIBOR plus 2.25%) per annum payabie quarterly. The sanctioned limit has temporarily been exceeded due 10 Issuance of
cheques which will be presented after June 30, 2014, The facility i valid till September 30, 2018 and is renewable.

The faciities mentionsd in 12,1, 12.2, 12.3 and 12.4 are commonly secured against first charge of Rupees 180 million (June 2017:
Rupess 180 millon) over current assets of the Company registered with SECP. Equiteble morigage supported by first charge on fixed
assets of Rupees 174 million (June 30, 2017: Rupees 174 millien) comprising land, building, plant and machinery situated at 19 KM
G.T. Road Kala Snah Kaku, Lien over export documents under letter of credit and contrac, shipping documents, accepled drafls,
counter guarantee of the Company and personal guarantees of threa Directors-amounting fo Rupees 155 million each (June 30, 2017:
Rupees 155 million). The running finance facility at note 12.4 in addition to securities aforesaid Is also secured against pro note
amaunting to Rs. 144.5 million (Jure 2077 - Rupees 84 million},

The facility mentioned in 12.5 is commonly secured against ranking charge of Rupees 40 milion (June 30, 2017: Rupees 40 million)
over all prasent & future current assets of the Company with 25% margin, duly insured, with Summit Bank Limited and registered with
SECP. Pari passu charge on fixed assets; compnsing land, building, plant and machmery situated at 19 KM G.T. Road Kala Shah
Kaky, Personal guarantses of three Directors along with Personal Net Worth Statsment (PNWS)

As 5t June 30, 2018 the Company has faciities from Bank Al-Habib Limited relating to import letlers of credit (sight/usance) amounting
to Rupess 5 milion (June 30, 2017: Rupees 5 million), Additiorally, Company has latter of guaraniee facility amounting to Rupess 15
million (June 30, 2017: Rupeas 15 million) from Bank Al-Habib Limited.

The net aggrecate short term borrowing facilities unavailed at end of June 30, 2018 amount ta Rupees 694 million (June 30, 2017
Rupees 13.08 milion) and for letters of credit and bank guarantees amount to Rupees £.744 million (June 30, 2017: Rupees 8.744

million).
Loans from Chief Executive and ex-director | shareholder are for working capital requirments and are re-payabie on demand and non-
intergst bearing.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

The Pakistan Environmental Protection Agency has filed a complaint against the Company before the Environmental Protecion
Tribunal an account of Company’s failure to properly digpese effluent water discharge during the production. The agency regards this 1o
be a criminal offence. The Company has filed a writ pelition against the Agency's claim before the Honourable Lahore High Court
('LHC"). The Company has not recognized sny liabllity in this regard sinca it awaits the decision of LHC which is pending. The
maximum fine in case of conviction, if any, cannot expected to exceed Rupees 400,000 {June 30, 2017: Rupees 400,000).

Guarantees Issugd by bank on behall of Company as at June 30, 2018 amounting to Rupees 11256 million {June 30, 2017. Rupees
11,256 miliion).

Commitments

The operating lease arrangement in respect of registered office has been as follows:

2018 2017
—-—Rupees in thousand-——-

Not later than one year 2,143 1,864

Later than ore yvear but not later than five years 2143
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Leiner Pak Gelatine Ltd. 2017-2018

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

16

17

18

18.1
18.2
18.3

19

19.1
19.2

20

LONG TERM DEPOSITS 30 June 2018 30 June 2017
——Rupees in thousand--—---—-

gacurity deposits:
Against assel subject to finance lease 513 259
Others 1 1
514 260
Less!
Current portion shown under current assets note- 22 o | 259 -
255 260
DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred tax on temporary differences comprises of:
Taxable temporary differences
Accelerated tax depraciation 14,206 15,252
Assets held under finance lease 510 258
14,716 15,510
Deductible temporary differances
Unused tax losses = 2,420
Minimun tax credits 14,280 12,857

e

Liabilities against assats subject to finance laass A36 233

Deferred tax asse! amounting to Rs. 1.844 milion (June 2017 i Rs. 11377 million) due © minkmum tax credits have not been
recognized as at Jun 30, 2018 as sufficient future taxable profits may not be avalable against which the said 18X credits can be
utilized.

30 June 201B 30 June 2017

STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS ———Rupees in thousand-—-=—=
Sinres, spare pars and loose 0olS 44,926 27.830
Packing materal 293 900

42,919 28,730

It is impracticable to distinguish stores, spare parts and loose tools, each from the pther
Stores, spare parns and lpose tools ars ganearally held for internal use only
No itern of stores, spare parts and laose tools is pledged as securty as atthe reporting data

STDCK-IN-‘\'RADE 30 June 2018 30 June 2017
———Rupees in thousand---—--=

Raw material 111,519 89,491
Work in process 63,465 =
Finished goods.

Gelaline ( 22,139 80,2872
By- product Di-calcium Phosphate {DCF) -note- 191 141 288

22,280 £9.550
197,264 179.041

The entire stock of by- product di-calcium phosphale is carred at net reglizable value

No tem of stock-in-trade is pledged as sacurlly as at the reporting date.

TRADE DEBTS
Considered good:
Unsecured - local 1,998 7,508
- foreign 12674 5,826
14,672 13,334

The following is the detall of trade debts in relation to export sales made to them during the year:

30 June 2018 30 June 2017

Jurisdiction Category —ee——e-Rupees in thousand---—
Malaysia Documents Against Paymerit 12,674 5,826

L e
92,674 5826
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|

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
21 ADVANCES --—---Rupees in thousand
| Considered good:
Advances:
To staff- secured -note- 21.1 1,363 1,501
To suppliers - unsecured 373 3.740
1,736 5,241

211 These are amounts advanced to staff against future salaries and retirement benefits and are in accordance with Company
| policy and are interest fres. None of the advances related fo executives and direclors.

30 June 2018 30 June 2017

| 22 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS ---——-Rupees in thousand-—---——

: Current portion of long term deposits -note- 16 259 -
Prepayments 1923 1.646

| 2182 1,646

23 OTHER RECEIVABLES

Sales tax refundable -note- 23.1 & 23.2 19,292 12,830
Other receivables - unsecured, considered good 165 220
19,457 13,050

23.1  This represents excess of input tax on purchases over sales tax payable.

| 232  The show cause nolices covering the periods from July 2011 to November 2015 intending to create aggregate sales tax

| demand of Rs. 192408 millon (as mentioned in note 11.1.2 of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
June 30, 2017) have been withdrawn and vacated in favour of the Company during the current year.

24 ADVANCE INCOME TAX-NET

Advarce income tax 30,200 25,070
Less: Adjustment for provision for taxation -note- 33 (7.698) (7.469)
Advance income tax at the end of the year 22,502 17.601

25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

| With banks:
L) on current accounis:
Local currency 81 1,743
Cash in hand 526 147

507 1,880

The above current accounts are maintained with commercial banks under conventional banking arrangements.
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26

27

271

27.4

SALES - NET

-note- 26.1
-nate- 26.2

Export sales
Local sales

Export sales
Gelatine

Local sales
Gelatine
Di-Calcium Phosphate, by-product

Less: sales fax

COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed -nate- 27.1
Semi - finished product purchased

Sigres, spars parns and loose tools consumed
Packing material consumed

Salaries, wages and benefits

Fuel and power

Faciory overheads

-note- 27.2
-note- 27.3

Add: opening work in process
Less; closing work in process

Cost of goods manufaclured
Add: opening stock of finished goads
Less: closing stock of finished goods

Raw material consumed

Opening stock
Purchases

Less: closing stock

Salaries, wages and benefits include employer's contribution {o recognised provident fund amounting to Rupees

3017: Rupees 1,545,780)

Factory overheads

Indireci |abour wages
Insurance

Medical expenses

Regpair and mainienance
Depreciation

Loading and unioading
Apportionment of sales tax
Miscellaneous expenses

-note- 14.3

-note- 27.4

This rapresents related input fax on supplies exempt under sixth schedule of the Sales Tax Act,

59

30 June 2018

30 June 2017

-------- Rupees in thousand----—
48,327 A7 748
703,970 544,624
752,297 692,372
48,327 47748
48,327 47,748
573,336 519,526

199,820 188,747 _
773,156 706,273
69,186 A1,649
703,970 f44 624
371,208 240,064

10,742 -
15,921 17,066
4,596 5,829
70,173 83,244
146,133 134,708
55,433 53,096
674,206 564 137
63.465 3 el

63,465 =T
610,741 564,137
52,222
616,358
89,491 52,866
393,236 326,682
482,727 370,555
111,519 83,491
371,208 290084

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
~——-—Rupees in thousand-=r----
17,387 17,792
2,673 2 415
764 04
6,072 6770
11,009 11,403
2,91 3,115
12,191 10,415
2,426 382
55,433 53.096

1,705,325 (June 30,

1990
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28

30

301

30.2

3

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets:
Foreign exchange gain
Income from non-financial assets:

Gain on disposal of fixed asset
Miscellaneous income

DISTRIBUTION COST

Shipping expenses
Commission on exports
Cther expenses

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits
insurance

Vehicle running and maintenance
Rent, rates and laxes
Travelling and convayance
Legal and professional charges
Printing and stationery

Fees and subscription
Telephone and postage

Repair and maintanance
Auditors' remuneration
Enterainment

hiara lease rentals

Utilitias

Depreciation

Amortisalion

Security expenses
Miscellansous expenses

-note- 30.1

-note- 30.2

-note- 14.3
-note- 15

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
-—---=-Rupees in thousand--~—-—

1,043 150
521 5
= 1
1,564 151
655 1248
309 418
1,415 1757
2,379 3423
29,280 30,597
1,343 1191
8,015 7,296
2,967 2,3%
2,257 560
289 479
470 460
1,441 4157
1,087 a76
293 550
602 483
956 799
. 54
577 457
1,149 1,341
2,687 1.953
1,086 1.525
54,499 55,174

Salaries. wages and benafits include employer's contribution to recognised provident fund amounting fo Rupees 1,002,901 (June 30,

2017; Rupees 939,307).

Auditors' remuneration

Audit fes

Fee for half yearly limited review of Financial information

Special reports and cedifications
Qut of pocket expenses

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Workers' Welfare Fund
Donations

Penalty from State Bank of Pakistan on export
Sales tax penalty

-note- 101
-note- 31.1
-note- 31.2

60

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
-—-—Rupees in thousand———

400 360
100 ]
50 =
52 48
602 483
207 245
76 119
260 20
1,665 1.089
- 75
2,208 1.558
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311

31.2

32

33

3341

333

334

34

Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund has been made as per Workers' Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1971 at prescribed rate under this
statute.

None of the directors or their spouses had any interest in the donses in respect of donations made by the Company.

FINANCE COST 30 June 2018 30 June 2017
-----—Rupees in thousand

Mark-up / interest on:

Short term horrowings 12,293 10,491
Liabilities against assets subject to
finance leass 62 60
Workers' Profit Participation Funid -note- 10.1 111 78
Bank charges and commission 556 820
13,022 11,548
TAXATION
Current-for the year 7.410 5,867
-for prior years 288 802
7,698 7468
Deferred - current year 1,286 | 315—|
- effect of change in tax rate (1,286) (315)
7,698 7.489

The provision for current taxation has been made on minimum tax under Seetion 113 and Seetion 154 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
Therefore, a numeric tax rate reconciliation has not heen included in these financial statamonts.

The Income Tax assessmenis of the Company are complete upio tax year 2017, as deemed assessments in terms of Section 120(1)
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (The Ordinarce) as per income tax returns of the Company. During the year the assessment for
the tax year 2014 has been completed resulting Into net tax demand of Rs. 288,513. The said case had been selected for total audit
under section 214C of the Ordinance,

The Company computes tax based on the generally accepted Interpretations of the tax laws to ensure that the sufficiant provision for
the purpose of taxation is available which can be analysed as follows:

Provision for Taxasouased Excess /
Tax Year taxati Desmed (deficit)
e assessments =

-Rupees in thousand

2017 6,867 6,867 -
2016 7,369 7,369 =
2015 6,947 6,927 20

Finance Act 2018 enacted gradual reduction in the corporate tax rate for Companies from 30% to 25% over a period of five years.
Deferrad tax has been measured at the rates that are expected to be applied to the lemporary differences when those are expected to
reverse based on the rates enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED 30 June 2018 30 June 2017
-—-—=-RUpees in thousand

There was no dilutive effect on basic eamings per share
of the Company which is based on:

Loss zfter taxation attributable to ordinary 13,956) (3.009)
shareholders of the Company

No, of
Waighted average number of ordinary shares shares 7.500 7.500
outstanding during the year
Loss per share Rupees (0.53) {040}
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30 June 2018 30 June 2017

35 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS --—=-Rupees in thousand---e--
Profit before taxation 3,742 4,480
Adjustments for:

Depreciation 12,744
Amortisation X

Provision for employee retirement benefits 2,485
Finance cost 11,549
Provision for Workars' Profit Participation Fund 245

Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund
Gain on disposal of property, plantand equipiment

1189

27,142

Operating profit before changes in working capital 31,602
Changes in working capital
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Stores, spare parts and loose tools (14,189) (9,496)
Stock-in-rade (18,223) 15,597
Trade debts {1,338) (9.550)
Advarices 3,508 (3,261)
Trade deposits and short term prepayments (538) 644
Other receivables 55 603
|| Increase / {decrease) in currant liabilities;
{ Trade and other payables 46,419 (35,361)
47,085 (9.222)
35.1 Reconcilition of movement of liabilities to cashflows arising from financing activities
June 30, 2017 Net (decrease) / Increase June 30, 2018
From banking companies-sacured
Running Finance
Bank-al-Habib Limited 127 201 (16,615) 110,586
Summit Bank Limited 30,728 1,492 32218
157 927 (15,123) 142 804
Finance against packing credit (FAPC-1)
. Bank-al-Habib Limited 21,908 {21,908) -
Short term finance (STF)
Bank-al-Habib Limited - 18,064 18,054
21,908 (3,854) 18,054
Short Term Finance against payables
Bank-al-Habib Limited - 15,000 15,000
Short Term Finance against IBP recaivables
Banrk-al-Habib Limited - 10,000 10,000
E 25,000 25,000
From relaled parties-unsecured
Loans from director / ex-director / sharehcider 31294 4008 35,302
211,129 10,031 221,160
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a6 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

a7 JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

37.1 Depreciation amortisation methods, rates and useful lives

The management of the Company reassesses useful lives, depreciation

equipment and intangible assets annually by considering expected pattem of economic benefits that the Company expects 1o derive

from that itern
37.2 Recoverable amounts of assets | cash generating units

The management of the Company
makes formal

reviews carrying amounts of jts assetl

Taxation

The Company takes inio account the current income tax law and decisions taken by appelals authorities. Instances whers the
tax department at the assessment stage and where the Company
material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown 35

Company's view differs from the view taken by the incoms
{hat its view on items of

37.4 Provisions

Provisions are based on best estimate of the expenditure required to
amount that the Company would rationally pay to settle the obligation at

37.5 Revaluation of freehold land

Revaluation of freehold land is carried out by independent professional value

local market values,

63

s and cash generating units far
estimates of recoverable amounts if there is any such indication.

setile the present obligation at
{he reporting date or 1o transfer it 1o & third party.

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
w—e—-s:RUpEES N thousand-—

807

ER—

-note- 25 1,890

method and rates for

each item of property, plant and

possible impairment and

considers
contingent liabilities.

the reporting date, that Is, the

s, Revalusd amounts are determined by the reference 1o
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

30June2018 3 June 2017
38.1 Financial e et SR I ey e S Rupees in thousand--e-—-.

The following are financial instruments by category:

Non - derivative financial assets
Loans and receivables

Security deposifs 1 1
Trade debis 14,672 13,334
Advances 1,363 1,501
Other receivables 165 220
Cash and bank balances 607 1,890

16,808 16,946

Non - derivative financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amartized cost

Liabilities against assels subject (0 finarice lease 1,732 856
Short term borrowings 221,160 211,129
Mark-up aceryed 2,906 2603
Trade and other payables 118,509 B4.686
Unclaimed dividend 71 852

345,078 300.128

The Company's activities exposa i to o varisty of finandal risks including effects of changes In-foreign exchange rates, market interest
rales, credit and liquidity risks associated with varigus financial ‘assets and liabiities. Tha Board of Direetors of the Company has
overall responsibility for tie establishment and oversight of the Company's risk managerment framewark.

382 Credit risk

Credit risk is the sk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or Counterparty to g financial instrument fails 15 meet jfs
contractyal obligations. The CBrying amaunts of the financial a5sets represent the maximum cradit eXposure. The maximum
Exposure lo credit risk at the reporting date is as under:

30 June 2018 30 June 2017

----- -—--Rupees in thousand---—..__
Security deposits 1 1
Trade debts 14,672 13.334
Advancas 1,363 1,501
Other receivables 165 220
Bank balances 21 1,743

16282 —  y5755

The maximum Skposure to credit risk for trade debts Amounting te Rupees 14.672 million (Juns 30, 2017: Rupees 13.334 million) at
the ?epoding dals by geographic region is as under

30June2018 3p June 2017
——-—--Rupees in thousand--c-.—-.

Domestic 1,998 1,508
Export 12,674 5826
14,672 13.334

The export debior of the Ccmpany Is situated in Malaysia,

The maximum EXposure to credit risk for trade debts amounting to  Rupees 14.672 million {June 30, 2017: Rupees 13.334 million) at
the reparting date by type of customer is 35 under;

30 June 2018 30 June 2017

=-=-—Rupees in thousand---me.-
Whole seller / distributor 3 <
End user customere 14,672 13,334
14,672 13,334
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383

The aging of trade debis at the reporting date Is as under:
30 June 2018 30 June 2017
—--—RUpees in thousand

Not past due 12,714 13,304
Past due 1-30 days - -
Past due 31-120 days 1,958 30

Past due 121-365 days 5 3
Mare than one year

14,672 13334

The Company continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the customers and makes provisions against those balances
considered doubtful of recovery. The Company manages credit risk by limiting significant exposure lo individual customers and
obtaining advances against sales. Based on historic record the Company believes thal no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of trade debts past due amounts. Further, bank balances are held only with reputable banks with high quality credit ratings.
The short term and long term credit ratings as determined by PACRA and JCR-VIS are as foliows.

Rating 30 Jupe 2018 30 June 2017
Short term Long term Agency -——=Rupees In thousand----—-
Banks
National Bank of Pakistan Al+ AAA PACRA 3 328
Bank Alfaleh Limited A+ Al+ PACRA 14 14
Bank Al - Habib Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 8 122
MCB Bark Limited At+ AAA PACRA 8 8
United Bank Limited A1+ AAA JCR-VIS 46 1,269
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited Al A+ PACRA 2 2
81 1,743
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company closely
monitars its liquidity and cash flow position. This includes maintenance of financial position liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors
concentration beth in terms of overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual customer. The following are
contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments and excluding the impact of netling agreements.

Carrying Contractual 6 months 6012 205 More than
amount cash flows or less manths years 5 years

Liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease 1,732 1,964 323 451 1,190 -
Short term borrowings 221,160 223,651 223,651 - - -
Mark-up accrued 2,908 2,806 2,906 = r =
Trade and other payables 118,509 118,509 118,509 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 771 771 7 - = =
Rupees in thousand 2018 345,078 347.801 346,160 451 1,190 =
Liabilities against assets
subject in finance lease 856 918 198 198 522 -
Short term borrowings 211,129 212,915 212,915 - -
Mark-up accried 2,603 2.603 2,603 - - -
Trade and other payables B4,686 B4,686 84,586 - - "
Unclalmed dividend 852 852 852
Rupees in thousand 2017 300,126 301,974 301,254 148 522 =

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of mark up rates effective as at
30 June The rates of mark up have been disclosed in notes 9.1, 121, 12.2,12.3, 12.4 and 125 lo these financial statements.
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38.4

38.41

38.4.2

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates or the
market price due to change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentments, speculative activities, supply
and demand of securities, and the liquidity in the market The Company is exposed te currency risk and interes! rate risk only,

Currency risk

The Campany is exposed to currency risk on trade debts Rupees 12.674 million (June 30, 2017: Rupees 5.826 million) and creditors
Rupees 5.604 million (June 30, 2017: Rupees nl| million) that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
Company. The Aggregate exposure of stalement of financial position to currency risk works out to be 7.07 million ( June 30, 2017:
Rupees 5.826 million). The cumrencies in which these transactions primarily are denominated are US Dollar and Euro.

Average rates Reporting date rate
2018 | 2017 2018 2017
Significant exchange rates applied during the year:
US Dollar 117.73 104.79 121.40 104.80
Euro 131.47 114.17 141.57 119.91

Sensitivity analysis

A 10 percent strengthening of the Rupse against above mentioned currencies at 30 June would have increased / decreasad the loss /
profit respectively for the year by Rupees 707,011 { June 30, 2017; Rupees 582,636) mainly as a result of net foreign exchange loss
on translation of foreign currency trade debts and creditors. The aralysis assumes that all other variables remain constant, A 10
percent weakening of the Rupee against above currencies at 30 June would have had the equal but oppesite effect an the statement
Of profitor loss, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from short term borrowings from banks. At the reporting date the
interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments is given below:

There are no fixed rate financial liabllites as at June 30, 2018 (June 30, 2017: Rupees nil). The Company does not account for any
fixed rate financial liabiiities at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore, changes in interest rate at reporting date would not effect
statement of profit or loss.

The variable rate financial liabilities as a1 June 30, 2018 aggregated 1o Rupees 187.59 millon (June 30, 2017: 180692 million). A
change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have (decreased) [ incraased the loss | profit for the year by
the amounts shown below. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular forsign currency rates, remain constant. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2017,

Profit & loss
100 bp 100 bp
increase decrease

Rupees in thousand---—--
As at June 30, 2018

Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate instruments (137) 137
As at June 30, 2017

Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate instruments (104) + 104
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38.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabllities

38.6

Fair Value Is the price that would be received to sell an assat or pald to transfer a llability In an orderly transaction between markel
participants at the measurement date.

A financlal Instrument is regarded as guoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regulariy available from an exchange
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent aclual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm's length basis.

The Company classifies fair value measurements and fair value hierarchy that refiects the significance of the inputs used in making
the measurements of fair value. Fair value hierarchy has the foilowing levels:

- Level 1: Quated prices (unadjusted) in aclive markets for identical assets or liabilties.

- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either
directly (i.e., as prices), or indirectly (L.e., derived from prices).

- Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability thal are not based on observable market data (1.e., unadjusted) inputs.

Transfer between levels of the fair valug hierarchy are recognized at the end of the reporting period during which the changes have
ocourred.

The carrying values of all financial assels and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurement - non-financial assets
(i) Fair value hierarchy
Judgments and estimates are made for non-financial assets that are measured at fair value in these financial statements. To provide
an indication of the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its nor-financial assets into
following three levels:
T Rupees in thousand =

Level 1 Level 2 Leval 3 Total
As at June 30, 2018
Freehold land - 286,740 286,740
As at June 30,2017
Freehold land - 286,740 - 286,740

(if) Valuation technique used in determining level 2 fair value

The Company obtains independent valuations of its freenold land at revalued amounts every three to five years. The best evidence of
fair value of freehold land is current prices in an active market for similar lands.

{iii) Valuation process

The Company engages external, independent and qualified valuers to determine the fair value as detalled in note 8.2 of the financial
statements
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39

40.1

40.2

40.3
40.4

Capital risk management

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to pravide
adequate returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and io maintain an oplimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

Consistert with othars in industry, the company monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. The ratic is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital, Nat debt represents total of long term financing and short term borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total
capital is calculatad as equity shown in statement of financial position plus net debt. Thers were no major changes in the Company's
management during the year and the Company s not subject to externally imposed capital requirement.
30 June 2018 30 June 2017
--—-—-Rupees in thousand--------

Total borrowing 222,892 211,985
Legs: Cash and bank balances 607 1,890
Net debt 222,285 210.095
Total equity 346,177 350,133
Total capital 568,462 560,228
Gearing ratio 39.10% 37.50%

OPERATING SEGMENTS
These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reporiable segment.

Sales revenue from gelatine producis and di-calcium phosphate (by-product) represent 75.97% and 24.03% (June 30, 2017: 75.71%
and 24.29%) of the total revenue of the Company respectively.

All non-current assets of the Company as at June 30, 2018 are located in Pakistan.

Sales to Hilal Food {F_’Vl] iimit‘e_d is around 16% (2017 21.59% Jand to Merck Pharmaceutical (Pvt) Limited is around 12.76% (2017
15.17%) during the year ended June 30, 2018

The sales percentage by geographic region is as fallows:
30 June 2018 30 June 2017

% %
Pakistan 93.58 93.09
Maiaysia 6.40 4.61
Germany - 2.30
Austria 0.02 -
100.00 100.00

.
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 30TH JUNE, 2018

FORM 34

NO. OF SHAREHOLDERS SHAREHOLDING TOTAL SHARE HELD

155 FROM 1 TO 100 7,169

234 FROM 101 TO 500 52,779

34 FROM 501 T0O 1000 32,035

120 FROM 1001 TO 5000 389,896

10 FROM 5001 TO 10000 69,056

3 FROM 10001 TO 15000 32,600

1 FROM 15001 T0 20000 15,500

1 FROM 20001 TO 25000 20,800

2 FROM 26001 TO 30000 52,000

1 FROM 30001 TO 35000 30,500

3 FROM 35001 TO 40000 113,020

3 FROM 45001 TO 50000 150,000

2 FROM 50001 T0 55000 105,800

1 FROM 70001 TO 75000 74,000

2 FROM 75001 TO 80000 150,960

1 FROM 85001 TO 90000 89,500

2 FROM 105001 TO 110000 211,360

1 FROM 120001 TO 125000 124,000

1 FROM 125001 TO 130000 125,900

1 FROM 145001 TO 150000 145,390

3 FROM 155001 TO 160000 480,000

. FROM 170001 TO 175000 340,600

1 FROM 200001 TO 205000 202,500

2 FROM 210001 TO 215000 429,200

1 FROM 270001 TO 275000 270,300

1 FROM 300001 TO 305000 304,550

1 FROM 330001 TO 335000 330,020

1 FROM 365001 TO 370000 370,000

1 FROM 415001 TO 420000 419,800

1 FROM 655001 TO 660000 657,900

1 FROM 750001 TO 755000 751,765

1 FROM 950001 TO 955000 951,100

3 594 7,500,000

Categories of shareholders No. of Shareholders Share held Percentage
Directors, Chief Executive Officers,

and their spouse and minor children 10 3,599,415 47.9922%

Associated Companies, 1 370,000 4.9333%

NIT and ICP 1 25 0.0003%

Banks Development Financial 3 4,852 0.0847%
Institutions, Non Banking Financial

Instituticns

General Public 570 3,407,550 45.4340%

Joint Stock Companies 7 115,576 1.5410%

Pension Funds 1 2,494 0.0333%

Other Companies 1 88 0.0012%

Share holders holding 10% or more 2 1,702,865 22.7049%




Leiner Pak Gelatine Ltd. 2017-2018

Catagories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)
As on June 30, 2018

No. of Shares
Sr. No. [Name Held Percentage

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail):
1 INA SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED. 370,000 4.9333%

Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail)

Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):

1 KH. IMTIAZ AHMED 751,765 10.0235%
MRS. AYESHA AHMED 172,200 2.2960%
MR. |JAZ AHMED KHAWAJA 304,550 4.0607%
MR. UMAR RIAZ KHAWAJA 214,600 2.8613%
KH. IBRAR AHMED 951,100 12.6813%
MR. AHMED ALI RIAZ 74,000 0.9867%
MIAN ZIA UDDIN (CDC) 500 0.0067%
MRS. NAVIDA IMTIAZ W/O KH. IMTIAZ AHMED 657,900 8.7720%
MRS. NEELUM NAZ W/O KH. |[JAZ AHMED 202,500 2.7000%
MRS. NAUSHEEN IBRAR W/O KH. IBRAR AHMED 270,300 3.6040%

O ~NoO s WwWwN

ol
<

Executives: 657,900 B.7720%
Public Sector Companies & Corporations:

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 7,346 0.0979%
Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)

KH. IBRAR AHMED 951,100 12.6813%
KH. IMTIAZ AHMED 751,765 10.0235%
KH. AHMED HASSAN 749,820 9.9976%
MRS. NAVIDA IMTIAZ W/O KH. IMTIAZ AHMED 657,900 8.7720%

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, Executives and their
spouses and minor chiidren shall also be disclosed:

S.No. NAME SALE PURCHASE
1 KH. AHMED HASSAN 200
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Form of Proxy

The Company Secretary,
Leiner Pak Gelatine Ltd.
17-G, Gulberg2,

Lahore-54660
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
I/ We
of being a member of LEINER PAK GELATINE LIMITED,
holder of Ordinary Shares as per Share Register Folio No.
(No. of Shares)
and/or CDC Participant |.D. No.
and Sub Account No. hereby appoint
Of
Or failing him of

as my/our proxy to vote for me /us and on my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held on 26™day of October, 2018 and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2018

WITNESSES
1. Signature

Signature on

Name Rs. 5/-
Address

Revenue stamp

NIC or
Passport No.

(Signature should agree with the
2. Signature specimen signature registered with

| the Company
Name
Address

NIC or
Passport No.

Note:
1. A member entitied to be present and vote at the Meeting may appoint a proxy to attend and vote for him /
her. A proxy need be a member of the Company.
2. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48
hours before the meeting.

3. CDC Shareholders and there Proxies must each attach an attested photocopy of there

National Identity Card of Passport with this proxy form.
75




17-G, Gulberg-2, G/Postmall Box-3529, Lahore-54660
Phones #: 92-42-35756953-54 Fax #: 92-42-35710604
Works: 19-Kilometer, Shahrah-e-Pakistan, Kala Shah Kaku,
District Sheikhupura.




